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Dy W A Marcus-Jones for the Appellant !

G Gelapgu-King Esq for the Regpondent- -

JUDGHENY DELIVERED 1'HIS 2 7"Say or Oebtenany o s

' : ' : i i

< 0n the 13t October, 1970, the Plaintiff, Sahr Mendekia, ii

. (whom I herciualier refer to as'ﬁhu Respondent), issued .a Writ %
of Summons agcohhﬁniod bf-a Statemanf‘of Cldaim against Gebrge b ﬁ
Beresfard Cole, (whom I shall-hereinafter rofer to &s the - ~-¥E

Appellant), for brouch of- a written contract dated 3rd Deoember{zf.
1968, The writtun contract providod, inter alia, that. the ;F
Appellant would construct a-fwo—stdreyéd building of four-self iﬂép
contained flats for the sum of L2l;,000 (twenty-four thougand . |i
leones) withiﬁ & maximum period of six (6) months, that™s toléii,

by June, 1969¢1 "he Respondent paid the Appellant an advance of

Le1l,000 (fourteen thousand leones), and agreed to pay the _ 3

balanoé on or before the 28th of Fcbruary, 1969, Ag a matter of

- fact, the balanco. of 110,000 (ten thousand 1eones).was pald on ,i

the 16th December, 1968, After the expiration of the time for .«

the performance of the contract, the Appellant, according to the . :

Respondent 's evidence, asked for one more month to oomplete the i.
|

building, that is to say, in July, 1969. The Respondent aaid he
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accepted. The building however was st11ll incomplete at the end

of July, 1969.
Litigation started by a Writ of Summons which was filed

on the 13th October, 1970, followed by a Statement of Claim.

The Appellant filed a Statement of Defence and counter-claim

on the 28th April, 1971. By leave of the Court, an amended

Statement of Claim was delivered and filed on the 3rd of
Novembér, 1971. The Respondent cluimed damages - general and
special - for broach of contract. The action was tried by Ken

During, J, (as he then was) who gDJL judgment on the 10th April,
1972, dismissing both the Respondcit's claim and the Appellant's

counter~claim. The Respondent appealed against that judgment

and the Court of Appeal (Percy R lavies, JA, 0. B R Tejan, JA
and Rowland Harding,-J )'aliowed ihe appeal on the 11th July,
1973, and orderud the Appellant to pay the Respondent le1l.,085

(fourbeen thousmnd and eighty—fiv\ leonra) as general dam&ges,.'

:ESOO (five hund:ed leones) a8 gpe:ial dumages and costs of the

action in the H!Eh Court and the vourt of Appealo-
The present appeal is againuh the judgment of the Court of

Appeal and the lollowing issues wure raised:
(a) Was the Appollant a grobuitous Agent of the

_Haspondent” ‘
(b) Was Lixhibit B! a qontrdct or & receipt?’
“(¢) If it was a contract, was there a breach of 1t?

-(d) Was the Respondent entjtled to the damages he
was- iiwarded or to any damages at all?

l It will be useful at this stage to set out Exhibit ‘C' as it ‘

'raiaed. - 7 ) .
EXHIBIT 'C

Road, Koidu 'own, Kono Disirict, in the Eastern Prov-*

ince of Sierra Leone, bein;; part payment of the sum

: : ‘ uf. ‘ .v?'- f5’
RECEIVED THE SUM OF Lelly,000 (FOURTEEN THOUSAND LEONES) ' {jF
'FROM SAWR LIBBIE MENDEKIA, 1:5Q, FARMER of 27 Yaredu ';“711-‘%
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of [e2l, 000,00 (TWENLY<1FOUR THOUGAND lﬁuuxn} for
the costs of construction of a TWO-STOREYED
BUILDING withi BOYS' QUAIIIIKS AND CAR PORY on
~14907 acre of land situated ofl Kissy LBye Pass
Road, Kissy Village na more fully described and
delineated on the Director of Surveys and Lands
Plan LS 1070/68 datud 28th November, 1968 to be
built and constructed with the best labour ahd
materials available within a maxlmum period of
(6) six calendar months from the date hereon;
the said structures to contain the fOIIOW1ng.-
TWO.STOREYED BUILDTHNG : (FOUI) SELF-CONTAT 1N
' DIl S AGHIY 1 A

GROUND M1.00L: No 1 - Lounge Cum dining room

Two bedrooms. One buth and wutor
isloset.

Estimated Unit <ost Ldy,00, 00
'lFlat No 2 - Lounge cum dinlﬂL room
Three bedrooms

One bath .and ‘waler closet Kitchen

_ listimated Unlt o8t - Leb, 600 00. .
'EIRST FLOOR:: .. Mat No 3 - LOUIGE CUM DINING ROOM .

0-.\.

w?lwo bedrooms
One bath arid water closet, Kitchen
Estimuted unit :ost - Lely, 400 .00

FLAT WO li: lLounge cum ﬂiﬂilﬂ -oon, Lhree bedrooms

one bath and wuler closet. Kitchen
ligtimated unit cosl: — Le6,000.00

BOYS! QUARTEIIS AND CAR PORL: 10YS' GUARTERS:-

"wo bedrooms One witer c¢loset and Shower
AR POHT = Covered accommodation for
four curs

listimated.unit cost - Le2,200,00

lixigencies - 800,00 -
YOTAL COST - Le2l;,000.00

I, Sahr Lebbie Mendekia aforesaid for myself my heirs and
Successors in title do hereby contract and agree with my agent,

Georgo Beresford Colw, Reul Estate Agent, .af 23 liverpool

|'.|/ o o

I




L

-l -

Street, I'reotown, Sierra Leono, L pay to him the balance of
[¢10,000.00 (ten thousand leonos) in full on or before the

’ /i
28th February, 1969, for the fulfilment of tho purposes hero-

inbefore coutained.

Dated in l'reetown this 3rd day of December, 1968,

(sgd) George Beresford Cole
Real Estate Agent

Head over and fully explainod

to Sahr Lebbie Mendekia by

KAT MOSSAY No 27 Yaradu Road,

Koidu, TRADER. When he, Shar Lel.bie
Mendekia seemed perfectly to undcrstand
the same before inscribing his murk and/

or thumbprint liereon,
(sgrd) WP
_Sa.l'm l.obbie 'I“iendeki_.a,,

‘ Having seL-out Exhlhit 'G'  propuse Llo construe it to
determine- wvhether its intention vas- to am')c),'u-\t-the Appellaht'
as aﬁ agént of_to croato un*ﬁuon?y. 'ir one or the other. kind
of relationship can bé agseribed Lo the document as a result
of the construction, then'thut iy the end of the matter, in -
regard to the igent or agency excluding other incidents.

But if not, Exhibit 'C' will be subject to further construc-
tion to determine if it is a conlract or a receipt. It is 1
accepted that the word 'agent' iy capable of being ug?ﬁ in a
number of ways dnd,in these procegdinés it was sought t6 use
it b# the Appellant's counsel as a 'conduit pipé' ﬁerely to
effect the trunsportation of the terms of agreement between
the Respondent and some other third party. Halsbury's 3rd
Edition, Voluno I at page 1,6 and paragfaph 351, states that
an agent has leen defined as a "porson primarily employed.fqr

the purpose ol placing thoe prinripul_in contractual or other

) + - - :
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relationa with a thixd. party and it is casential Lo an agency

of this characltor Lhal a thirdspurby ahorld be dn oxisgtence or

contemplated". Wilsgor v Shovt (18)38) 6 dare 166G, relors.

There are oLhcy uelflnitions hut th:l i8 ihe one rclcvant

to our present purpoic. 1t may howcver une neccducry to refer

to the distinction betwcon tho conduct nud exerciso of the

functions of an indepondent contractor nnd an agent. The ‘H
distinction betwoen an independent contractor and an agent 1is ;;
clearly stated in Ialsbury's 3pd edition at pagoe 116, para=- ,ﬁ
graph 350 Volume \. aiy follows, "an indcpendent contractor, on ‘
the other hand, is ontirely independeni of any control or !J-L
interference, and melely undertakes to produce a specified ?
. )
rescit,_employing hi:i own moans to pronuve that result" o o o :
"An agent, ﬁhougﬂ‘boNnd to exercisec hi authorlty in accordance }ﬁf;
wifh all lawful instmucfions vhich may be given to him from
time to time by'ﬁis.principaif is- rot subject:  in its exercise - b
. to thﬁ direct contrcl or, superv1waon ol the: brincipal? I think -« .\fA
: PO i1

o :
- - e

this is a p01nt 10 ]u hapt Jn mlnd imivornstruing Lxhlbit Sove 2 GALE

The ebove exwnpl.cs ludmcato Lhat two 10les are contemplated -

one whose only dnly is ‘the product1on of -a specified rasult )

without any control and thc other in vhich lawful restrlctlons R

may be impcsed during the performance of the object to be . R

achieved. It cannot be denied that t.e Respondent attached

his right thumbprint to Exhibit 'C' ond that such act was Zf. o §

. 2 /{Q ” accompam_ed by other lepgal requlremam.b to make ﬁ effect Ve
N F ~ e
X § Exhibit 'C! also contains a paragraph which reads:-
{ ar:
3 FOA
< ‘; "I, Sakr Lebbie Mendckia aforosnid for myself, my
: heirs and successors in titlo do hereby contract
o ~with my agent Geori:e Berosford Cole, Real IEgtate
3

Agent of 23 Liverpool Stroeet, Freetown, Sierra

Leone", and signed, "Gieorre Beresford Cole, Real
Eastate Agent". :

6/ e e s




Appellant's counscl arpguod that bec:uge Geor,co UBoresford Cole
was referred to a: 'my agent!' in the passase quoted above, and
because of other veferences to him Iho Appellant as 'Real
Egtate Agent', thero is sulficient .vidence Lo show that his
duty as an agent was to bring the pirincipal and the third
party together, and that this was purticularly so because he,
the Appellant; was receiving no payment for his services.

The first'general rule of construc%ion of a written docu-
ment 1s that the language of the instrument is to be under-
stood‘in its ordinary and natural m :ning, nothwithstanding
the fact that such a construction may appear not to carry out
the %iew which it may be supposed tliec parties intendéd to

carry out. This view was expressed in the case of Lee v

Alexandar,(TGUJ) 8 App Cas 853 at pasces 869 ond 870. One of

the cardinal rules of constfuction o8 that words must be coh-

strued as they atﬁnd° the case. of “'"hrockmerton v Tracey 5 ER.

pa.g':é.22§;‘ Staunford, J, laid.dow_n lhhe rule Lthat "words éhall

be construed-agcording to the ihteﬁtfof tﬁe panrties and not

N a el

otherwise". In dctermining the intont of the parties;ithe

3

document in question shou%d,be'conshrued as a whole, In an

instrument of the kind we are caonsidering, Wilson v Short

already Qudted réquires it as essenliial to an agency that a

third party should be in existence or contemplated. In Exhibit

1C! there was onlyAéﬁé reference to the words 'my agent', from
which bné'could vaive at the sense in whichvfhe word, 'agent'
was used. The woirrds 'Real Estate Agent"nre-merely descriptive
of what i may call ~ the primary oécupation of George Beresfora
Cole. Iﬁ céhstruing Exhibit *C* 4t is necessafy to examine
the- sense iﬁ whicély 'my ageht' is ﬁsdd. Does it imply the
existence or contemplation of a third partj when considered
along with various other portions of the document? A passage’
of the document reads, "I, Sahr Lebbie Mendekia aforesaid for

myself, my heirs and successors in tiltle do hereby contract and

—
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" purposes horeirneforementioned.

Z2-b

u L .
i Borost rrd Coleo, Real listate Apent

arree with my agont, Georpe

of ?3 Liverpool Stroel, lroeetown, Sierrn Leone, to pay to him
the balance of 1:10,000 (ton thous: nd leones) in full on or

before the 2ith February, 1969, f«r the fulfilment of the

purposes hereinliefore contained", The purposes hereinbefore

contained are s.t out in another cection of the same document -

1for the costs of construction of a two-storeyed building with

to be built and constructed with

boys' quarters and car port;

the best lahour and materials available; within a maximum

period of six calendar months; from the date hereon, that is

when the document was sipgned betwnen the Appellant and the

The words, 'do herébf cbnfract and agree' are

Respondent.
' the fulfilment of the

signifipint as also the words,
ine, would asi, .what do the

worda, 'my ngent!' venlly sipgnify: Do they imply a mere con-

duit pipe or aro thv~-nf'mudﬁ sroibor importance? Do they

create a s1|1131|011 in tﬂnrﬂu thc\; cineiypal LUllUl («bICj‘ﬂ) Liis x
d o - ey

&uthoxdey hy (,uvaju Iivlaﬂ |uuirﬂv 1"ion, Lo Llu d ard, o7

they indicale that the prlnclpal is -only 1nterested in the

production of a specified result: Put in this way, the . -

answers are obvioﬁs.. The rolo ol the Appellant in these

circumstances is incomﬁatibld willh either bringing the-prin- ..
¢cipal and a third party together or bringing himselﬂ‘under

the direction br control‘ofithé vrincipal. I believe that the

words, 'agent' and 'agzoncy', as nvgwed by Counsel for the

Appellant, do not have any relevince to the Appellant or to

his relationship with the Respomdent for at no time was a e
- EEEE *
third party meutioned by name or description nor was there '

any auggestionfin‘wxhibit 'C' that a third party was in exist-

‘ence or contemplated. I do not agree with the argument con-

vassed by counsel for Lhe Appelltnt that Appellant was a

gratuitous agent. Irom all the material which coild be gathered

8/ o - 4
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g?l(the word 'agenht' i.a my opinion usod 'n Ixhibit 'C' showed that
n

the relationsﬁlp botween Appellant » «l Respondent was that of

Lse

‘gf?]; Prindipﬁl and nn 1ndependenﬁ contrac o nndbthat the use of
the word 'agenl' has not changed the naturo of that relationship.

One of the issues which emerpged as a result of the argu-
ment of Coﬁnsel for the Appellant wes that Exhibit 'C' was not
a contract. He submitted that it was a receipt. I propose to
deal with that submission as it was strongly convassed.

Ir. the course of his ufpument,‘cpunsel for the Appellant
sald that, the object of hxh¢h¢t 'C' was to acknowledge the
_recelpt of moaay and not as the Court found a contfaet to
erect buildings on the land'. "The ulole of Exhibit 10!, by
that I mean, "its entire content, is called in question. When .
read and appralsed as a document relevant in its-entirety to
the subject matter -of this appeal,Acould it be said that ‘it

"~ evokes only an.impreséionvofuackngwlédgement of moﬁey feceived? 5
I‘Before‘raferring Lo_the.componént éhqtiops of the exhibit in
_?gome aetaii-it will be-useful to-oumlihe the main characteris-
' tiCS‘Of a 'receipt', and then attempt to digco§ér whether the :
_.conténts of Exh;bit 'C' would match the constituent elements
of & receipt as dofined by law. Stroud's Judicial Dictionary
Volume IV, uth‘ed;tion; beginning al: page 2270, defines
'receipt’' és requiring 'no particular form of words necessary
to constitute a roceipt. The word tsettlé&' or ‘'paid', or
any other word purporting to give & discharge, together with
‘siéﬁﬁture 6§;the creditbr, or his more signature on ‘a document
spécifying‘the.amount due without any words indicaﬁing péyment,

.'ig sufficilent (R v Martin) 7 C & P S19; Spawforth v Alexander,

2 Egpinasse 621; R v Boardman 2 Moore & R 147. In Jowitt's
Dictionary of English Law;'a receipt is defined as 'an acknow-
Lodgement in-writing of having received a sum of money, which

= is prima facie but not conclusivo evidenco of payment !,

Skife v Jackson (182l) 3 Band C }121-. In Webster s New World

NDictionary, 'a roceipt is a wriller ncknouledgement that some-

(W 4 - !
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ete. hus Leon received'. In the light
’ &

thing, as goods, mouney,
of these defifiitions, it could lo concluded that the essential
slenents of a roceipt are that it is :m aclknowledgement; it
ig in writing; it is a mere admissio . of o faot that money or
some other form of valuable has beon -vceived. In none of
these definitions is it even mildly nu;gosted that any further
information is required, while in St}muQ's Judicial Dictionary

already referred to, it is stated thst 'a mere signature on a

document specifyin;; the amount withoul any words indicating

payment is sufficicnt' R v [arbin.
The Appellant is entitled to raiuso the question that if

the other parts of the document are «-:punged, could Exhibit 1Ggt

not be regarded as a roceipt? If it is arirued that that should

t‘%;'
LR

be the propor nppruacﬁ thon Txhibit 'C' would inevitably be
éﬁ(acknowledgedto bemlrabmentary document. But this is not so.

It takes into uccount u whole ranbe nf connected 1ncidents and

fuses them into a distlnctly dlscernxhle pattern in -such a way

%

that each section is 1inked up. With lhe preceding and subse-

~ quent one. - The topics SpeflCled thut the Respondent was p&ying,
at the time the document was drnwn up, the sum of m14, 00,00

ror a particular iype of building al a named site as delineated
on Director of Surveys and Lande Plin LS10{O the buildings to
be completed in six (6) months. Th- buildlngs were treated on . |
a unit basis and an attempt was madw to sot a price for each
unit. The Respondent then went on to contract and agree with
~the Appellant for himself, heirs and successors to pay a '
balance .of 1e10,000 by the 20th February, 1969. These to my mind

do not euggest that the document wos a’ mere acknowledgement of

money - received. It did not simply acknowledge a receipt of

money, it made provisions as to tho fulfilment by ‘the Appellant

of specific obligations and also created binding legal duties :

for the Respondent, his heirs and successors.




- 10 - «2"‘
c%éiu Having disposed of this, I con: to counsel's 33;;:;Lt
contontion thut Exhibit 'C' wi o coubract astrossing that
there was no 'ad idem' that iy, 'a wnmtual utderstanding be-
twoon the parties as to the ovxuct Lype of buidldings to be
constructed'. Thlo plan approved for the buildings, Exhibit
'B', was produced on the 11th December, 1960, and counsel
argued that if a centr&ct Exhibit 'C' had been signed on the
3rd December 19¢8, the approved plan could not necegsarily

have been the same plan the partie:. had in mind when Exhibit

'C!' was executed. In the case of Ialek v Williams, (1900) A G
176 P C where the same wofds were nqed with differont meanings,
it was sgaid that the partles were rnot at one and therefore
there was no consensus ad idem. The Tacts in this case are
different and diubinguishable, Bot.1 sides conducted nego-

' tiatidns teéethej before the pPOJebL was decided upon._AThe
1ayout and gerner:l. character of thc progect were determined

] and these reaultnd 1n the productinn of an upproved plan on

fthe 11th Deccmber 1968 On the 1¢.th December, 1968 the |
npproved plan was -seen by the Respundent after it had been
prepered on the instruction of the Appellant. There was no
question at this time that thée pariies were not of the eame
mind, In the inntant case, the Apj.cllant wasAeolely respon-

'sihle'for 8ll conetrdctionel_arrenrnmentn and Exhibit e,

which, ag I huve already mentioned was drawn up by the Appel-

1aﬁt,‘ It w111 s und very harsh in the menth of the Appellnrt
to say that in the montl. of Decembur, 1960, the Hespondent and

himself did not liave a mutual unde:standing of the kind, nature
and quality of baildin;sit was Qgr :ed and contracted to con-

e struct : Even COI(\JLHI that Lxhib<t 'B' was to be the basis

on which Exhibit 'C' was to be conatructed, whon-it did turn-

up, apart from tie detuils in meas rements which were included,

wo.s there eny substontial differensc at all in the basic ideas
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incorporated in the two documents: I siy no, Further, since

the Respondunt paid on the 16th D .:umber, 1963, that is, after

the Appellant hud seen Lixhibit 'B', which wns in his possession,
wohld his conduct not amount, Lo au adoption of the two docu=

ments? How then: could it be said that there was no consensus?

Counsel for the Appellant leant hvavilj on the case of Scammell
v _Ouston (19&1) 1 A1l E R page 1l. Lord Wright quoting Lord

Dunedin said, "wowever, as Lord Lwnedin seid in May & Butcher,

Limited v R (5) (reported in a note to Foley v Classique Coaches

Limited (6) at page 21:
"To be a good coutract there must be a
concluded bargaii, and a concluded con-
tract is one which settles sverything
that is necessary te'be settled and’
kaves nothlng to be settled by agree- .
. ment between the parties.  Of- course,
it may 1eave-something which still has
.to be determlned but th } that. deter~
5?5[ mlnatlon whiéﬁ does not d?pend upon the

N~~~ A
abreement betweeu the partlee"

.This passage vevy succ;nctly pute the case for the Reepondent

‘against the Appellant Exhibit Ted, did leave certain things

out but these Lhings were not dependent on -a further agreement
between the palbleu. In counsel ror the Appellant’e own words,

I quote, "there were many areas in which abreemenb should be
reached such ae, how the buildings were. to be ereoted‘was a '
subsequent term. to be coneldered' and thet there wae no decision
about who was going to be the bu:lding contrector or eurveynr or
costs" The most cursory of examlnation will show that these |

were not matters dependent on agremment between the parties ae

all the indices leading to -a concluded bergain had elready been

‘embodied in Exhibit 'C', The cases cited Hutton v Watling_(19u8)

Ch_398 st p L03/L05; Caddick v Ulcidmore (1857) Ll E K 907:

and Penn v Simmonds (1971) 3 A C R 327/2)10 by the Counsel for

Lo improve the inconsequential

tho Appollant did- not do anythin:
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vein of this particular submission.

I have road with intoreat the cases rolferred tg above and
observe that the former two were cited by the counsel for the
Appellant in support o f his submission that a good contract
is one which has setiled everything necessary to be settled
between the parties leaving nothing for future determination
betweeh them; whilst the latter was a submission that in con-
strulng written agreements only evidence of factual background
ahould be received. A1l these cases in my opinion, do not
effect this issue. It is significant that IIutton's case was
referred to by Counsel for the Appellant I shall read out a
portion of the Judgment of Lord GJBGHB M R, he said, and I
quote, "the first thing we have tu do, as I have seid, 1is to
cohetrue‘that document. ~ The true conetrucfion of e ﬁocument
means no more than that the Court puts upon it the true meaning
-belng the meaning which the other party, to whom the document
was handed or who is relying upon it as an ordlnary intelligent
_pereon construlng Lho words in a proper waJ “in the light of
relevant circum,tances" Itfgoes on to say, "what then would
_the purchaser when she received tle documertt have thought it '
Amee;t'ee an ordinary reasonable porson intelligently understand-
ingithe English language and construing it in the 1light of the
‘melevant. circumstances? She could only have understood that
lthe vendors were deliberately and solemnly recording th;rgermsn

of an agreement into which they were prepared to enter, or

indeed, into. which they had entered", It qnntinues, "I showld i

have thoughb 1t quite impossible for the vendors to turn round
now and eay;"although the document which we handed to you on
6 Seffember, 1937,'quite'clearly'purports to record the agreed
terms between us . . . . . there was no congideration', With
a slight change of words the situation could easily‘be that in

the instant case. Of course, the appeal was dismissed. - The

reference in tliis case to the abuence of considepration is also

s T T T O




&

Ty

R T 552’
apposite. Ag thoe principles involved are similar to those in
tho instant cdso, ar.d as Lhey hauve becn ucourutclﬁ analysed and
the law properly apjlicd, I adopt and apply Uhom. Bxhibit 'C'!
has been examined fiapgmentally as wel® as cohesively and the
exemination has revualed thiat there wis a concluded bargain be-
tﬁeen the parties und this constitutcd a velid contract. It
should be particularly borne in mind that it was the Appellant
who drew up LExhibit 1c1, :

Counsel for the Appellant questioned if it was conceded
that Exhibit 'C' was a contract‘uhether the Respondent should
be entitled to both the 16,000 which he had speﬁt out of pocket
and the u1u,085, the amount estimatc. to complete the build-
ings after the 12,000, the. agreed smount in the contract had
beeil Spent? With regard to tho 16,000, the trial Judge had
this to say. "As regards the Defenddnt's counter—ciaim although
he alleged therein that he spent en oxtra sum of 16,000 of his
own money thereon thh the concurrcucse and at the request ol
the_PlaintlfI, tloxo is abundant evidence before this Court that
the allegation‘iu nol true". Thosc are strong words and the -
Court.of Appcul rightly did not puiaue the matter. Counsel also
gubmitted that tlie award of m1u,OBU would amount to an unjust
enrichment nz tlit vash sum would he supplmental to the owner-

ship of the buildings or whatever else the Respondent hLiad

:?%; ;[acqu1red from them. He cited the case of Nathaniel Stuart.v

Lawrence Pardoe (1963) 1 WLR p 67(. Chalmers's case was based

on an oral agreomenh of land in Fi ji which could not be leased
without the permission of the Native Land Trust Board. The‘
gaid land was leased and a building erected thereon. Befora

an appiication for the Board's consent was made the Appellant
and Respondent rell foul of each other. No consent was in fact
obtained thougl: the building had been erected. Sir Terence

Donovan delivefod the judgment ol the Privy Counqil and advised

-Her Majesty that the pppeal should be dismissed. It is

| ' W e o
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pertinent to point oul that that c¢ase related to the applica-
tion of the doclrine of equitable estoppel. This principle

does not arise in this case. The question here is based on

"
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contract. llad the Appellant any authority to vary or break

the terms of Exhibit 'C' without reference to the Respondent?

The outstanding questions now are - Was there a breach? If

bt |
‘

B there was, was the Respondent entitled to the quantum of

@lﬁ.m*ﬂ‘a“ Wi

R PR

~ damages he was awarded?

i

ey gy

In considering whether the conduct of the Appellant

amounted to & breach account should be taken of the performance k

St pita ol

of his promisee}if those were executed in the manner and the

T p—

time agreed upon. In the case ol Hawkins v Rogere (1951), 85

e

1 T R 128 e raco horso had boon sold with its engagements;

after the sale the vendors, in whose name the engagements stood,

Ay .

_witheut coneulting the purchaser cancelled the engagements. 4

The'High Court of Eire held that such caneellatipn was &a clear

e

Z.ihﬁerrefencé nithfbr violation ol the purchaser's contractual .

T R L e ST

pights and was 1ntended to and did injure him,” The purchaser

was entitled to damages, which were assessed at £750"., Any

bt Y R T SR

e

breach of contract of one party tlves the other party an

R T Pa

immediate cause of action for d&mages..‘Usually timé 18 not of . ]

- = h———

’ © the essence in contracts involving work and labour, but where

i the contract S0 provides time becomes of essence,’ In the’ caSeu'F;

(following

5-.:1“ of Charles Richards v _Oppenhai
| Hymans

‘Crawford-v_Toogood (1879) 1r§é,m?“_1:

{1940) 3 K B L78) the facts ave that "in August, 19&7,wfhen

Defendant placed an order with the: Plaintiffs for the building
of a body on to the Chdgis of a motorcar on the footing that
. the Plaintiffs could obtain it within six months, or, at most

seven months". Trom March, 190}, onwards the Defendant kept‘

preasing for delivery., ON 2i) June, 1948, the Defendant wrote

to the Pluintiffs, "I regret I :hall be unable to .accept N
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deliveory after .'th July". When 1w Defendant learnt from
the Plaintiffs {hat the body ol tlc¢ car would not be ready
by that date, tlie Defendant cancelled the order. The Plain-

tiffs completed the car on 10th October, 1948, but delivery

- was refused by the Defendant. The Plaintiffs thereupon brought
an action claiming the price of tl.o body of the car. Lord
Denning delivering the judgment s«id,,
"If this h:d been originally without any stipulation
as to time and, therefore, willh only the implication
of reasonalle time, it may b( that tho plaintiffs
e could have said that they hac fulfilled the contract;
: but in my cpinion, the case iz very different when
there was an initial contracl, mal:ing time of the
> essence of the contract: within six or at the most,
seven months", '
— ?xh;bit 'C' contained the terms oi the contracts- which Btipu-l
- lated among other things that a "Lwo-stérgy—building with
- .Béys' Quarters :ndvcgr port was to be constructed onb;1907 acre
i q: land situated off Kissy Bye Pass Hoad within a maximum
5 period of six () calendar mqnthé'ffom the. date hereon,'that is
the 3rd day of hecamber, 1968. Tl.cre is no cnntentidn that the
building as described was iﬁcomﬁl:te 8ix or eéven seven months
of after; élso thut the building was not raady either for occu-
- } pation or fental. The original pirovision ﬁaa inscribed in the
Lse.,g;ai' cbnﬁract, Exhibit 'C! and had not been ﬁerforméd'in the mannér):;
:ing:::ul. - and time agroed upén, then on ?he basis of the cases cited, a
: ., breach had been committed for which the Respondent was entitled:
B %o teke action for.damages. Ihis means that his right of action
ok for damages had therefore accured. The facts of this case
; ¢ : re%eal that Exhibit 'C' was signed on the 3rd December, 1968,
Bt“l The Appellant entered into an agruoment to carry out the pur-
t poses inscribed in Exhibit 'C' for the sum of Le24,000. On the
- 10th December, 1968, Exhibit 'B' l.ud been produced. This was

- handed over to Halhab, Defondant's 1st witness, some time during

87 &« = &
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which is ﬁbsolute. An extract from Halsbury's Laws of England

- 16 -

that moath for an ostimate to Le prenared. In Lhat same month,

the estimate wus prepdred and found Lo be 1e36,209.95 cents.

This was before tho commencement of congtruction of the build-

ing. These facts were never reported to the Respondent until

the 11ta Juné, 1969, when the completed building should have

been deli&ered up. Assuming that Malhab's figures were correct,

then the Appellant was taking on an obligation voluntarily and

deliberately entering into a contract he knew it was impossible

for him to fulfil. ' This could not release him from his liabilty

to pay damages. Lefore going on to deal with Appellant's con-

tention,_i.shpuld refer to the effect of a building contract

3rd Fdition Volumc 3 at P Uy paragraph 8&3, reads as follows.

"If the contract to build or ercect works ig absolute“
(which this JS) 'and unrestricted by any condition
expressed or implled ‘and it 15 impossibletodo the
work and the contractor does not complete it, he will

not be excuscd ixom the consequences of not fulfilling
the contract or: Lrom a 11ab111ty to pay damages. In
the case of Jones v St Jolin's College, Oxford, (1870)
LR 6 QB 11 at page 127, Hawnier, J, said, 'In that
case a conbructor undertook unconditionally to perw
form a contrict within a specil'ied tlme, ineluding

axiy extras whiich mibht be ordered;  and oxtras were

ordered which made completion lmp0351ble within the

gg'contracbtlmo ‘the contractor uwas held liable to -
pay damages for the delay'.

The Court of Appeal ordered as iollowa el

(1) That tho Respondont puy o 1.he Appellant the
sum of 1614,005.00 as gonceal damapges;

(2) That the Respondent pay t- the Appollant
the sum of L500.00 as- specisl damages; and

(3) That costs on the claim in the Iigh Court,

. costs of sppeal in this fJnrt and costs on
the Respondcnt's notice Le paid by the i
Respondent.
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The basis on whici. damiyses under the first head were fixed was
the evidence of John Thompson, a Chirtered Surveyor, who, in
January, 1971, estimated the value of the work required to com-
plete the buildin,s as [£17,450.00. From the amount, the Court
deducted Le3,370 luaving the sum of 1:14,085, Counsel for Appel-
lant forcefully contested this award. He referred to the case

of Philips v Ward (1956) 1 A11 E R ii74-C A, (Denning’"Mbrris,

Roamer L J J), and Quoted a principle which he alleged emanated
~ from Lord Denning. - The alleged principle was "that where cost

of completion or reinstatement is wholely disproportionate to -

the advantages of undertaking such wvork, the measure of damages

is to be assessed by calculating tho diminution ‘in -the value of

the property caused by the breach of contract", I am 30§fY‘to

say those words were not used in my report. The major finding

of that Court of Appeal was based o the dictum of Viscount

Haldane L £ dx Br:tlsh Westlnghouse Llectric and Manuraoturlng

Company Limlted v Uhderpround Electtlc Rys Company of London
Limited (1912) A Clat p. 689,

‘-"$

The Court of Appeal in' act held
that - ' \ e, '

iendbed e 0"

o o
"The .measure of damages was tho difference between the
~ fair value of* the property if it had been in the con-
dition described in the Defendunt's report (£25,000)
- and its valuo in its actual condition (£21,000);
‘ accordlngly 1he amount .recovernble in damages .wag
~ £y,000",

s ey
In the course of his Judgment Lord Denning did say, *L

take it to be the clear law that the Proper measure. of damage

“1is the emount of money which will put the Plaintiff into as

good & position as if the surveying contract had been propefly
fulfilled'; and ulso, 'the proper criterion is to' take' the

difference in value between the premises as they ought to have

been delivered up in repair, and the valae of the Premiaesﬂag B

they are delivered out of repair, The difference is the - §'3Q";

sure of the damagos to which the landlord is entitled'. I:am
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afraid I am at a loss as to what tlie alleged principle quoted

really meahs but I will accept it could mean the difference
between the actual and the 833esged prices. That is near enough !
to the finding in that Court of Appeal. I do not however accept
that the principle by which damage:s were determined in Philips
case 1is applicable in the instmnt cage. .Tha basis on which
damages in the Philips case was founded was in negligenco and
damages were measured to satisfy the requirements of a liability
in tort as per the dictum of Viscount Haldane in the British

Westinghouse Electric cage supra., What isg being considered in

this case is damuges in respect of a breach of contract. The ﬁ
41&?50339 of Mertens v_Home Freehold Comp&nv Limited (1921) 2 K B

26 gives an admirable exposition of the proposition in such a

cagse. In the course of his judgment in that cdse- Lord Sterndale, "
Ay M R said" 2

", think tho Plbht ‘measure is correctly. stated in
Hudson on BUlldlnL Contracts, lith edition, -Volume
2, p 491, on the authority of an Amerlcuu case: ._ if
'Hirt v Hahn”( 'B agroed to ercct for the plaintifs : 'g
according to plans for a certuin day. 'The defend-
antg were B's sureties. After partly completing,
B ceased ‘work, and the plaintirr, after giving | i H¢i
notice’ to the sureties entercd and completed and :

.aued the Sureties. Ileld,. thal the measure of ' ‘ :X;
dameges ‘was what it cost the plaintiff to complete :
the house substantially as it was originally inten— 
ded, and in a reasonable manncr, less any amount

_ that ‘'would have beéen due and payable B by the i

' rplaintirr had B completed the house at the time

‘agreed by the terms of hisgs contract', It is true. .
_ ‘ that that is an American case. Though I cannot
o put my fingor on theém: for the moment, I feel satis-
v . ried that there are English cuses which fix the '
o ‘ e same measure of damages", 38

This, in my opinion, is the principle applicable and I find

nothing wrong with the measure of damages awarded. The second
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l .not frustrate the contract
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leg of the rinding in 'hilips v Ward was, "that the damages
should bo assessed at the datc¢ the dmmayge occurred, viz, 1952,
and accordingly, allowancs should not be made for the increase
of the cost of executing the 1equisite work of repair between
that time and the date of bearing of the action". ~Whilst I
agree with this statement as an undérlying principle it must
however‘be actively borne in mind_ that occasions-oould arige
when individual tests are necessary. In this case, the conduct
of the Appellant made it impossible for any assessment to be
done before action commencod. I would therefore hold that thé
proﬁer time that assessment could have been made here is when
the keys weru obtained coﬁsidening all the circumstances of

the case.

‘As therc is no contention that the building was not com-
R

“Pleted in tho time agreed I would huve to consider whether cir-

cumstances hud changed so fundamentally that made it impossiblp

.for the contract to be péfformud In builéing contracts, hard-

shlps, inconvenlence for material 1oss are not grounds for the

-

frustratlon of contracLs, In 1he ‘case of Davis Contractors

Limited v Fareham U D ¢ (1956) A C 696 729, the Plainbiff. o

agreed to build seventy-cight liouses for. the Defendant for a

fixed price, the work to be colicluded in elght months. Ag a

_ fesult bf'waather, shortage or labour, the work toqk-twenty-

two months to complete at an extra cost of £17,000, It was
claimed for ihe contractors that the intervening circumstances’

over which thoy Lad no control had frustrated the contract.,'

'The Houso of Lords held unanimously that the oiroumstancea did

In the instantcase, also, such an argument cannot be sup-'
ported by the facts as the Appellant had voluntarily contracteﬁ
terms which turned out to be omerous. He had with him the 5

estimate submitted by Malhab and if he was so minded he oould

have informed the Respondent and op sought a reviaion of ﬁhe
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torms of Exhibit 'C' during the currcvncy of the contract. This

he failed to do. Liability to damages is the legal consequence
for a breach of coutract and in view of all the circumstances

of this case, I find no justification to interfere with the L £9
awards made. The appéal is therefore dismissed with cosfs to

thé Respondent in this Court and the Courts below. Cqsgﬁ to be
: Ta

L7 TR
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[N THE SUPREME COURT OF SIERRA LEONE Lo

BETWEEN 3
. GEORGE BERESFORD COLE - APPELLANT
= :
SAHR MENDEKTA = RESPONDENT
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Livesey Luke J.S.C. I agree that this appeal should be dismissed..

I would, however, like to make a few observations of my own. . ¢

1¢ Contraoct or Receipt

e

Counsel for the appellant submitted with considerable force that Ex. C
(hereafter referred to as the document) was not & contract but a mere
recoipt; In order to deteérmine the soundness of that submission it is

necessary to construe the document in order te urderstang its nature

and purpose. The general principl.e upon which-the Court acts in- construi
'aooumeni-:s is well settled. ﬂ;.‘he primary purpose of construotion is to
sacertain the intention of the parties he.ving rogard. te the word.s used -

in 'hho whole document and to the circumstances under whioh it. iaa made,

[_prd ot
Y In this connection the words of/Greene M.R. in HUTTON v. WATLDTG Sk
(1948) 1 Che 398 .are appropriato. He said at p. 11-03:- -: G

I u-l- LR - D L

"The true construction of a dooument means no m

madre than that the Court puts upon it the true

meaning, being the meaning which the other. )

; party, to whom the document was handed or who is

24 relying upon it, would put upon it as an o :
Lo intelligent parson construing the words in & ..
proper way in the light of the relevant ciroum- :
stonces, This document, on the face of it, was

G intended to be handed to the purchaser, snd it ,,sw, e
B "is produced by the purchaser. Indeed, the Ihal :
s T tenor of the,document indiocates that 1t is jo b
purchaser's document. What then would the

: jf-,*_,l.is purchaser when she received the document -_
g fthought it meant as an ordinary reasonabls’ po;z ¥
o -, intelligently understanding the English. ;Lma '

end construing it in the light of the relevant . ..
oircumstances? BShe could have undu‘utoodi'bhl‘b*':ﬁh'lﬂ'
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/” vendors were deliberating and solemnly recording

the terms of an agreem.nt into which they wers
prepared to enter, or, indeed into which thay

had entered."

-

I now propose to analyss several portions of the document which I

' Oonsider significant, in order t. ascertain the nature and purposs of

the documeut. The document starts off with the wordas "Reoceived the sum

of I.B.M. 000 from Suhr Lebbie Mondeld.a, Esq., Farmer of 27, Yaradu Road

; Koidu Town, Kono Diﬂtrlct in the Eastern Province of Sierra Leone being
part payment of the sum of le.2k,000," In my opinion this is quite |
olearly an acknowledgement by the appellant (Georgo Beresford Cﬁle) of
the receipt of the sum of lea14,000 from the respondent (Sahr Lebbie
Mendelda) as part payment of a total sum of Le.24,000. My understanding -

of a receipt is that it is an acknowledgment in writing of the receipt

of monéy, chattel etc. In my opinion therefors the abovs quoted portion
of the documeny if signed by the appellant would have eonstituted a |
sufficient recclpt by the appellent of the. Sum of le,14,000, But the
document go;s on to make further and. detalled provisions - relatlng to
the purpo.,e of the" payment of the Le.M.,OOOo After the receipt portion
" quoted above the dOrument contlnnas "for the cost of construction of a
;-Two Storey buildlng w1th Boy’s Quartera and Car Port on 01907 Acre of i
land situate off Kissy Bye Paaa Road, Kissy Village as more fully
described and delineated on Director of Surveys and Lands Plan

13 '1090/68 dated 28th November, 1968 to be built and constructed wtth
the best. labour and materlals available within a meximum period of ,?

6 aix calendar months from the date horeon" In m view, this ortién
y ’ P

ntateu that the money was paid for-the construotion of a two storey
i - bullding etc. (hereshafter called the building), specifies the land on
which the building was to be built, mekes stipulstions as te the quality

S e e i sy L s

.of workmanship and materials and stipulates the pericd for the completion

I
of the bullding. These are terms which are common in building oontruota.;

i The document then goes on to spell out the specifications and costing of

the various sections of the building. I do not think that it can be F

seriously ocontended that a mere receipt for mensy received would make

such detalled provisions. In my opinion these provisions point



of

ling

rtion

r

‘and that it contained oblig&fiohs binding on both parties.

Quite clearly that was the meaning put upon the document by the responden

fulfilling his initial obligation by paying the sum of ls,14,000.on the

Lz
unequivocully to the fact that the dociment is a building ocontrabt.

The documeut then goes on to provide that "I Sahr Lebbie Mendekla
afhregaid ror myself', my heirs and successors and title do hersby
coniract and agree with my agent George Beresford-Code, Real Estate
Agent of 23, Liverpool Street, Freetown, Sierra l4ons to pay to him
the belance of le,10,000 in full on or before but not later than 28th
February, 1969 for the fulfilment of the purposes hereinbefore contained
By this provision, the respondent solemnly bound not only himal‘f but
also his heirs and successors in titlg to pay the balance of the
contract price for the fulfilment of the purposes of the contract i.e.
the construction of the building. By this provisjon, the appellant
also took steps to protect himaeif by ensuring that the respondent
entered into the obligation not only on his own behalf but also on

behalf of his heirs and successors in title. - il

Another significant aspect of the document is that it was signed. Q%
by both the eppellant and the respondent. If the documont was a mere

receipt; one would expect that only the appellant who received -the

- money would have signed it. In my opinion the fact that it was signed

by both partiég is & clear indicatjion that it was more then a receipt ,f

It is important to state that the document was prepared by the

appellant, whks type—written and was stemped with & fifteen cents stamp,

ST e e fm st Lo

Bhat then was the nature and purposé'of the document? In my opinion

having regard to what I have said above, it was & contract entered o
into between the appellant .and the‘reaﬁondent for th& appellant to
construct a building eto. at Kissy Bye Pass Road, Kissy Village in |
accor&anoe with the specifications stated in the dooument and to
completd the same within 6 months in consideration of the respendent
paying to‘fhe appellant the sum of m.14,doo on the date of the execution
of the document and the sumrof l:.10,000 on or-bofore 28th February, 1969,
as an ordinary reasonable and intelligent person in Sierra Leone, and

not surprisingly he regarded it wms a solemn document, for apart from
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'1n1:o writing.

 pequired by the Statute to be in writing, the document satiofied all the

2

date of the execution of the document, he fulfilled his other part of
the bargain by jaying the balance of lg,10,000 well in advance of the

date stipulated in the document.

N L e
A % T S

In coming to this conclusion, I am guided by words of Lord Wright in
lie said at pp.25-26

=,
vz

SCAMMELL ve. OUSTON (1941) 1 All E.R. 14, HuL.

"The object of the Court is to do justice
between the parties, and the Courd will
do its best, 1f satisfied that there was &

ot i M
R Ty

an ascertainable and determinate intdmtien e
to contract, to glve effect to fhat intention, ﬁ
looking at substance, and not mere form, It Y
will not be deferred by difficulties of Yo
interpretation. Difficulty is not synonymous %
with ambiguity, so long as any definite meaning I
can be extracted. The test of intention, how- - ‘E

ever, is to be found in the words used.” There

are many cases in the books . of Wwhat are called
i11lusory contracts -~ that is, where the parties
may have thought they were making a contract,

but failed to arrive at a definite bargain. It

is a necessary requirement that an agreement, in
order to be binding, must be sufficiently definite
to enable the Court to give it a practical meaning.

"'Its terms must be so definite, or capable of being ;
made defihite without further agreement of the :
parties, that the promises.and performances io be
rendered by'each party are-reasdndbly cortain,” : 3%

P T Py
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In this cese, tha parties took the trouble to reduce their contract

But 1t is necessary to emphasize in view of certain

arguments &dvanced by learned Counsel for the appeliant, that the ‘oontract
need not have been in mriting,-the reason baing that since it was a
o§n£fact‘tp bebperformed within a year, it is not required by Section A
df‘thew5£g£ute of Fraués 1677 (which the relevant Statute. applicable in
Sieffa ieoﬂe).to be iﬁ‘wfiting. And évﬁn assuming'that,if was a oontract
requirempnta.of the Section. It contains‘tﬁe names of the partles i.e.
George Beresford Cole and Sahr Lebbie Mendeldls; it states ik, gibdo
matter of the agreement i.e. the conatruntion of a bullding eto. at
Kissy Bye Pass ROad it atates the consideration for the work = Y-
w.24,000; and it was signed not only by the party to be charged i.e,

George Beresford Cole, but also by the other party. With respeot, it

is therefors idle to argus that there was not a conoludsd or enforoceeble

contraoct between the appellant and {he respondent. _ :
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Learned Counsel for the appellant lald much emphaaii- on the faot
that a building plan had not been prepared when the document was signed.
Tn fact the building plan is dated 11th December 1968 ~ eight days after
the signing of the document. Learned Counsel submittgd that in view of
this fact, there was not a concluded contract between the parties. But
an examination of the facts would reveal that the auhmiséion is mis~-
conceived. It is important to emphasize ‘that the building plan was
prepared on the instructions of the appellant, with full kmowledge of
the terms of the document including the specifications, the unit costs
and the total cost of the building. So one would uxpeét the appellant
as a reas&nable businessman to prepare a plan that would comply with .
the apecificaﬁions and at the same time keep within the unit costs state
and within the total cost of the building. If he chose to exceed the

- total figure.agreed upon he .has only himself to blame, Learned Counsel

* relied on FPENN v. STMMONDS (1971) 1 W.L.R. 1381 H.L. for his

submission. In that case it was held inter alia that in construing &
_uritte% agreement evidence of negotiations or of the parﬁiaa.int&ntions'
‘ought ﬁot to be received by the Court, and tﬁat evidence should be
yeatricted to evidence of.thq fagtuai'background knowg-to the pa#ties '
gt or before the date of the contract, including evidence of the "genesi
and objectively the "aim" of the transaction. In my opinion that @ggisi
does not support the case for the appellant. Th; ov@doﬁqgiad@gqu befor
the Court in the instant case was the document signed bf both péf%ia;‘,“
and . evidence of _tize ¥genesis" of the tra.naa_ction. No-evidence wasn
adduced of any negotiations or of the intention of the parties. In
fact no such evidehco was necessary in this case, because -the fgaulﬁ;of‘
any negotiations and the intenticn of the parties ;:;r;;ducﬁd %pfo' .

ﬂriting.nnd élaarly set out in the document.

bt -

2, Gongideration

Learnel Counsel for the appellant also submitted that ne consideral
flowed from Lhe respondent to the appellant, With the greatest rgspoqt,
T do not think that this submission has any merit. One is bound %o ask

what did the appellant receive the sum of le. 24,000 for? If 1t was not %

consideration of constructing the buildings, what was it for? Quitg




clearly, the lc.24.,000 was the conaideralion flowing from the reapondent ka) {
to the appellant 1or the cunslruclion by lhe appellant of the bullding.

I think that the pusition is so clear that any excursion into the law

relating to consideration will be an unnecessary academic exercise,

3. Agenoy
It was also contended on behalf of the appellant that on a

proper construction of the document the relationship between the
respondent and the appellant was that of principal and agent, and not
that of employer and contractor. Learned Counsel for the appellant
submitted that the appellant was an agent fg% the reapondent to secure
the sorvices of some third party independent contractor to exsoute +he
work provided for in the contract. A reference to the plaadings would
show that this submission is the result of an afterthought. In the

Defence and Counterclaim the appellant averred inter alia:-

"1, The Defendant denies the allegations contained
in paragraph 1 of the Statement of Claim, but say
that follo#ing verbal negotiations, he agreed with
the plaintiff on a friendly basis to help him with
the construction of the said bu11ding as described. .
‘The Defendant on the 3rd December, 1968, gave the !
plaintiff a. receipt for the sum of Fourtesn Thousand

Leones (le.14,000) and contracted and agreed to pay

the balance on or before the 28th February, 1968, i

=L L J . - L Ll - L] - L] L] L]

6. The Defendant says that the plaintiff has failed ¢
to pay the necessary extra amount required to complets )
the buklding and has rendered it impossible for the
defendant to do so."

In my opinion what the appellant was aileging in the two paragraphs

quoted above wag, first, that he agreed with the respondent't§ help him

E T

with the construcfion_&f the building and secondly that the respondent
had falled to pay the extra money required by him (the appellant) to v 5
.complete the buildipg'and that the respondent had randered it imppsaible ,
for him (the eppellant) to complete the bullding. There wags no suggestion @f iy

in those paragraphs, or indeed anywher: in the Defence and Counterclaim,

of any agenocy, or that some third party, and not the appellant, was the

contraotor. The question of agency wa:s railsed for the first time in the

final stages of the address of learned Counsel for the sppsllant before

the learned trial Judfe. The learned trial Judge found thap on a proper
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was the person under an obligation to construot the-building; ‘With

interpretation of the document and on the evidence, the relationsh.ip Lbk)
between the respondent and the appellant was that of pgincipal and

agent. With respect, the learned trial Judge went astray. Agency

was not an issue bet'ore him. Besides, in paragraphs 1 & 6 of the

Defence and Counterclaim, the appellant accepted that he, and not some
third party, was to build the building for the respondent. But even
assuming agency was an issue at the trdal, the finding of the learned
Judge was, in my opinion, erroneous, I have already stated what I
consider to be the proper construction of the document. But in view of
the finding of the learned Judge it is necessary to emphasize certain
poinfao Aﬁmittedly,the word ‘agent' was used in the body of the document,
bﬁt in my opinion thaf was a mere description of the occupation of the
appellant and not a statement of the capacity in which.the appellant

was making the transaction. At the very beginning of the document it

is stated that thelaﬁﬁellant received the sum of le.14,000 as part

fayment for.thé construction of a two atoroy‘building to be bullt and
construocted ﬁi;hin 2 maximum period of -six months, and no where in that
fart of the document, or indqed any other part, is it stafgd, or even
-;Qggaated; fhat.g ihird party was contempyated. Anﬁ.if a third party , -

was not contemplated, the reasonable conclusion is that-the appellant

regard to the evidence, I think that even the evidence adduced on behalf
of.thﬁxéppéllant overwhelmingly disprbvesany case of agenoy. I need
refer to only two pleces oflevidence. First, in a letter dated 41th .
Juné, 1969 (Ex. E) written by the eppellant to the respondent, the
appellant demanded the payment of extra money to,-in his own words,
‘"gnsble me to compléte constyuction'an sch;ﬁuledf. [ The emphesis is
mine/., Secondly, the appellant sald in evidence that the independent

third party engaged in the construotion of the building was oqp'Turnar.

. The appellant tendered a file (Ex. P1~181) which he claimed contained

records of his expenditure on the building. But when the file is

examined it is discovered that all the invoices for materials supplied
were issued in the name of the appellant and not in the name of Turner,

Furthermore the monthly wages sheets of the appellant show quite clearly

t ¥
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that far from beiung an independent contractor, Turner was employed by

the appellant as a daily waged artisan at le.2.25¢ a day. It is also

%

important to state that the records show that Burner was not employed

-

throughout the period of construction. In my judgment therefore, both

on the construction of the document anl! on the evidence, the appellant

, o TR M T Rl
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was not an agent bulthe contractor who contracted to construct the

e

building for the respondent.

be ~ Damages

The appellant did not complele the building within the time
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stiphlated in the contract (i.e. 2nd June, 1969). He applied for and

was granted a month's extension of timc within which to complete the

TR AN o,

building. But up to the date of the issue of the writ of summons (i.e.

PRI R LY

13th Ootober, 1970), and up to the time of the trial, the building had
st11l not been completeds In my judgment fhe failure of the appellant
to complete the buiiding by 2nd July, 1969 {d.e. the extended period)
constituted a breach éf contract. The Court of Appeal xwgfded the
respondent the sum of le.1L., 085 as general damages and the sum of m.soo
a3 ;peoial dnmagea for breach of contrdct. The Court of Appeal based
the¢r aSSBSSment»of the general damagés onra valuation of tho cost of
oompletion of the building made in Jannury, 1971 by John David Thompson
a Chartered Quantity Surveyor. Mr. Thompson gave évidence ;t the trisl,
Learned Counsel for the appellant attacked the award of general damages .
on Qajorél grounds. He submitted that the Court of Appeal erred in .
falling.to take into comsideration the fact (as aileged by the appellaﬁt) "
that in addition to the sum of le.24,000 paid fq him by the feapondeht,'
‘he had expended some,m;S,OOO_gf his own ﬁonex on the building. What then
. 18 the proper meésﬁré of damages in'such_cipcumstanc;n? In my.opinion

the proper'measure is the cost of completing the building in aocordancg i
witﬁ the cbﬁtraot in a reasonable ﬁanher; and at a ressonsble ﬁgng-x time,
What is important is not the value of the building in its present state

or the émoﬁnt of ﬁoney actuaily expended on the building, but the cost of

completing the building. So even if the claim of the asppellant that he

had expended some le,30,000 on the constructioh of the ullding is true, ha

would still be liable in damages measufed according to the cost of
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completing the buildinge If the appellunt had in fact expended le.3C, 000,
it was hls misfortune for which the respomdlent should not be made to

suffer. Ridfley .T. stated the law correotly in H. DAKIN & CO. LIMITED

Ve LEE (1916) 1 K.B. 566 when he said at Pe 571:-

"esssee. that where there is a contract to do
work for a fixed sum you are not simply to
meagare and value the work actually done; the
proper course is to deduct from the contract
price the cost of the work which has not been
done," =

Learned Counsel for the appellant also submitted that the Court of
Appeal erred in basing their assessment on January 1971 costs. He said
that the assessment should have been based on the costs in July, 1969
the time of the a]leged breach, With respeot, I do not agree with
Counsel's aubmissi?n. A similar argument was afvanced to and accepted

by the English Divisional c'ourt in MERTENS v. HOME FREFHOLDS CO. The

'question in that case was whather the measure of damages for breach of

l a building contract should be fixed in the year 1916 when the breach took

place, or in the year 1919 when the employer was allowed to complete tho.-

- work -and by ‘which time the price of all building materi als work vages
and iébpufihgd_ipcreaSQi:énorﬁqusly; The Court of Appeal roaarvad the

: deciﬂion'of the Divisional Court: see (1921) 2 K. B 526. Dealing with

the queation of tha proper time for fixlng the measure of damages, Lord

'SteFdale sfid at pe 534:

“'I'ha 0ffichal Referee has glven to the plaintdiff the ,, . o

"' amount that it cost him when he was allowed to do the'r;
work in 1919. The defendants say that either he is ...
entitled to nothing,’ or that if ‘he is entitled to ¢ )
' anythin; the measure of damages ought to be fixed in’ e
the year 1916, The Divisional Court have adopted the -
defendanta' contention. I ocannot agree with them.
‘The first particular in which I differ from them is
that I do not think they ever looked at the contract
in the right way. They have considered the contract
as if it were one to deliver goods in September, 1916~
a contract to deliver a roofed house on the ground in
September, 1916 ~ and what they have said is, that all
that the plaintiff is entitled to is the differenoe
between the price of the work] in fact, done by the
defendants through Lawrence and the price of a roofed
house 1n September, 1916, Thut is to my, they have
treated the contract as if it were one for the sale of
goods and have held that the measure of damages is the
difference between the market price of the day of what
the plaintiff ought to have hud and what he got. In




2
¢ : i q‘b my lhwumble opiniorn that is an entire.!: wrong way of Ll'q
lookdng at the contract. There is nc contract to
deliver gocds, and there is no marke*t price for a
rooced house.)

And he continued at p. 535

"But the bullding owner must set to work to build his
house at a reasonable time and in a reasonable manner,
and 1s not entitled to delay for several years and then,
if prices have gone up charge the defaulting builder
with the inoreased rice."

-~
And Warrington, L,H. said at pp. 5358-539
| "The Divisional Cow't has substituted for the
measure of damages adoptcd by the Referee what, whth
all respect, appears to me to be an incorrect measure
of damages - namely, they have trected the contract
as if it were one for the sale of goods and have held
that the pleintiff is ehtitled to the difference
between the value of the tdorrodmx thing he got st the
material time - that is to say,.when the breach svas
committed -~ and the value of the thing which he would
have got if the defendant had done his duty. In my
opinion that is not the true measure of damages in a
contract of this kind."
I think that these diocta stete the right measure of damages &hA thi
- proper timo at,which tho damages should be measurad in contracts such e
" the one in tlie instant case. Of course, what is reasonable time in whi~n
the employer should complete the work would depend on the oiroumatanoas
"of each case. What then were the circumstancas in the instant 02807 ~
The breach oppurred in July, 1969, but the appellant rcfuse&1to hand
over the keys of the building, and consequently the respondent could ho
gain access to the building. Accoraing to the evidence, up to -October,
1970 the keys were still in the  possession of the appallsnt(tSQe Ex. N)
and up to 8th February, 1972 when the appellant was being re—examined b
aﬂmitted that some of the keys were still with him, It is not revealed F
by the evidence when scmé of the Yeys were harded to the rjapondent.
g
But even asﬂuming all the keys had been handed ower in Ootober, 1970,
three montha (L.00 up to January, 1971) would in the sromstances be A’
reasonable time within which to complete the building. In my judgment,
the Court of Appe#l applied the right measure of damages, and therefere

this Court should not interfere with the award.
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